

"MEMBERS' RIGHT TO CANCEL

If you wish to cancel this contract, you may cancel by delivering or mailing a written notice to the membership travel operator. The notice must say that you do not wish to be bound by the contract and must be delivered or mailed before midnight of the third business day after you sign this contract. The notice must be delivered or mailed to: (Insert name and mailing address of membership travel operator). If you cancel, the membership travel operator will return, within ten days of the date on which you give notice of cancellation, any payments you have made."

Subd. 4. CANCELLATION AT ANY TIME. A contract which does not contain the notice specified in subdivision 3 may be canceled by the buyer at any time by giving notice of cancellation by any means.

Sec. 2. [325G.51] PENALTIES; REMEDIES.

A person who violates section 1 is subject to the penalties and remedies provided in section 8.31.

Presented to the governor April 3, 1990

Signed by the governor April 6, 1990, 11:05 a.m.

---

CHAPTER 412—H.F.No. 1673

*An act relating to occupations and professions; regulating the practice of pharmacy; amending Minnesota Statutes 1988, sections 151.01, subdivisions 3 and 11; 151.13, subdivision 1; and Minnesota Statutes 1989 Supplement, section 151.34.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1988, section 151.01, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. PHARMACIST. The term "pharmacist" means a natural person licensed by the state board of pharmacy to prepare, compound, dispense, and sell drugs, medicines, chemicals, and poisons an individual with a currently valid license issued by the board of pharmacy to practice pharmacy.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1988, section 151.01, subdivision 11, is amended to read:

Subd. 11. PERSON. The term "person" ~~includes every individual, copartnership, corporation, or association~~ means an individual, firm, partnership, company, corporation, trustee, association, agency, or other public or private entity.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1988, section 151.13, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. Every person licensed by the board shall pay to the board a renewal fee to be fixed by it. The board may promulgate by rule a charge to be assessed for the delinquent payment of a fee. It shall be unlawful for any ~~such~~ person licensed as a pharmacist who refuses or fails to pay such renewal fee to practice pharmacy in this state. Every certificate and license shall expire at the time therein prescribed.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1989 Supplement, section 151.34, is amended to read:

**151.34 PROHIBITED ACTS.**

It shall be unlawful to:

(1) manufacture, sell or deliver, hold or offer for sale any drug that is adulterated or misbranded;

(2) adulterate or misbrand any drug;

(3) receive in commerce any drug that is adulterated or misbranded, and to deliver or proffer delivery thereof for pay or otherwise;

(4) refuse to permit entry or inspection, or to permit the taking of a sample, or to permit access to or copying of any record as authorized by this chapter;

(5) remove or dispose of a detained or embargoed article in violation of this chapter;

(6) alter, mutilate, destroy, obliterate, or remove the whole or any part of the labeling of, or to do any other act with respect to a drug, if such act is done while such drug is held for sale and results in such drug being adulterated or misbranded;

(7) use for a person's own advantage or to reveal other than to the board or its authorized representative or to the courts when required in any judicial proceeding under this chapter any information acquired under authority of this chapter concerning any method or process which is a trade secret and entitled to protection;

(8) use on the labeling of any drug any representation or suggestion that an application with respect to such drug is effective under the federal act or that such drug complies with such provisions;

(9) in the case of a manufacturer, packer, or distributor offering legend drugs for sale within this state, fail to maintain for transmittal or to transmit, to any practitioner licensed by applicable law to administer such drug who makes

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

written request for information as to such drug, true and correct copies of all printed matter which is required to be included in any package in which that drug is distributed or sold, or such other printed matter as is approved under the federal act. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to exempt any person from any labeling requirement imposed by or under provisions of this chapter;

(10) conduct a pharmacy without a pharmacist in charge;

(11) dispense a legend drug without first obtaining a valid prescription for that drug;

(12) conduct a pharmacy without proper registration with the board; or

(13) practice pharmacy without being licensed to do so by the board; or

(14) sell at retail federally restricted ~~medical devices~~ or medical gases without proper registration with the board except as provided in this chapter.

Presented to the governor April 3, 1990

Signed by the governor April 6, 1990, 11:11 a.m.

#### CHAPTER 413—H.F.No. 1977

*An act relating to veterans; providing for an executive director appointed by the veterans homes board; amending Minnesota Statutes 1988, section 198.004.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1988, section 198.004, is amended to read:

198.004 ~~DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FOR VETERAN HEALTH CARE TO BE APPOINTED; DUTIES~~ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.

Subdivision 1. **APPOINTMENT.** The board ~~may~~ shall appoint a ~~deputy commissioner of veterans affairs for veteran health care who shall have the training, experience, and other qualifications in the field of health care management as the board determines~~ an executive director. The executive director shall serve in the unclassified service at the pleasure of the board. The executive director must be a resident of the state of Minnesota, a citizen of the United States, and a veteran as that term is defined in section 197.447.

Subd. 2. **POWERS AND DUTIES.** ~~If a deputy commissioner is appointed by the board, the deputy commissioner is the administrative head of the veterans homes and has the powers and duties provided by law and delegated by the commissioner. A delegation must be in writing, signed by the commissioner;~~

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.